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VIA: Mark Pfefferle, Acting Chief, Development Application and Regulatory 
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FROM:           Candy Bunnag, Planner Coordinator, Development Application and 
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REVIEW TYPE:  Special Protection Area (SPA) Water Quality Plan  

 

APPLYING FOR:  Removal of impervious surfaces  

 

PROJECT NAME:   M-NCPPC Department of Parks project at Parcel N817, Grauel’s Addition to 

Spencerville (2831 Spencerville Road, Burtonsville), M-NCPPC Parkland in 

Upper Paint Branch Special Protection Area  

 

REVIEW BASIS: Montgomery County Code, Chapter 19, Article V.  Water Quality Review 

in Special Protection Areas; Montgomery County Council Resolution 13-

215 designating the Upper Paint Branch Special Protection Area 

ZONE: RE-1 

LOCATION: Located on the south side of Spencerville Road (Rte. 198), east of Allnutt 

Lane 

MASTER PLAN:      Cloverly Master Plan 

APPLICANT: M-NCPPC Department of Parks 

 

FILING DATE: March 28, 2011 

HEARING DATE: May 5, 2011 
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RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to the following conditions: 

 

1) The applicant must remove all impervious surfaces on Parcels N817 and N818 and 

surfaces associated with the entrance driveway within the Spencerville Road right-of-

way. 

2) Prior to the pre-work meeting, the applicant must submit a plan that provides 

specifications for restoration of these areas to pervious surfaces for review and approval 

by the Planning Department. 

3) A Planning Department inspector must be included at the pre-work meeting. 

4) A Planning Department inspector must conduct a post-work inspection to verify the 

removal of all impervious surfaces and completion of restoration work. 

5) All impervious surfaces removed from Parcel N817, N818, and the road right-of-way will 

be used as impervious surface removal credits for one project only.  Credits will be 

assigned to a project after the Planning Department inspector has verified removal of 

impervious surfaces and the completion of restoration work. 

 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

 

The 0.46-acre property (Parcel N817) lies within the headwaters of the Upper Paint 

Branch Special Protection Area (SPA) on the south side of Rte. 198.  It is owned by the 

Department of Parks and drains to the Right Fork Tributary of Paint Branch.  A house 

(constructed in 1965), driveway, and lawn are on the site.  The driveway is configured so that 

part of it forms a circle.  A small portion of the circular part of the driveway lies on the adjoining 

parcel N818, which is also owned by the Department of Parks.  There are no forests, streams, 

wetlands, 100-year floodplains, or associated environmental buffers on or adjacent to the 

property.   

    

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

Parcel N817 was purchased by the Department of Parks in November 2010.  It has been 

added into the Upper Paint Branch Stream Valley Park.  The site acquisition and proposal to 

remove the impervious surfaces on the site are consistent with the Cloverly Master Plan 

recommendation to protect and improve water quality and aquatic habitat and maintain overall 

imperviousness at or near 1990 levels in the Upper Paint Branch SPA.  In addition, since the 

property is in a SPA, it qualifies as a Legacy Open Space (LOS) Master Plan site under the 

category of Natural Resource Protection Area.  There is also a provision within the LOS Master 

Plan that allows for acquisition of properties in Exemplary Natural Communities including the 

Paint Branch Watershed.  Other sites in the Upper Paint Branch SPA have been purchased as 

parkland even though they were not specifically identified in the Cloverly Master Plan for park 

acquisition; these included the Grauel, Beatty, Bailey, and Mitchell properties. Parks staff has 

determined that the house and driveway are not needed and is now proposing to demolish the 

house and  the driveway.   
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ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 

 

 Review for Conformance to the SPA Requirements 
 

Montgomery County Resolution No. 13-215, adopted by the County Council on July 11, 

1995, designates the Upper Paint Branch SPA and requires each applicant proposing any land 

disturbance activity within this SPA to submit a water quality plan for review in accordance with 

the Special Protection Area legislation. 

 

Section 19-62(c) of the County SPA law (Chapter 19, Article V of the Montgomery 

County Code) states that “before engaging in any land disturbing activity on publicly owned 

property in an area designated as a special protection area, the applying agency or department 

should prepare a combined preliminary and final water quality plan.”  

 

Under the provision of the law, the Montgomery County Department of Permitting 

Services (DPS) and the Planning Board have different responsibilities in the review of a water 

quality plan.  DPS has reviewed and approved the elements of the water quality plan under its 

purview.  The Planning Board responsibility is to determine if environmental buffer protection, 



 

SPA forest conservation and planting requirements, and site imperviousness limits have been 

satisfied.  

 

DPS has determined that Department of Parks’ written description of the project meets 

the intent of the SPA regulations.  DPS has approved Department of Parks’ letter of March 23, 

2011 (Attachment 1) as the project’s SPA water quality plan. 

 Planning Department Staff has reviewed and recommends Board approval of the elements of 

the SPA water quality plan under its purview: 

  Site Imperviousness 

 

  The Parks Department is coordinating with the Maryland State Highway Administration 

(SHA) for removal of the house and impervious surfaces.  SHA has requested “impervious 

surface removal credits” for the removal of the house and the driveway from the Department of 

Parks to partially offset the 0.113 acre (or 4,922 square feet) of impervious surfaces that was 

added as part of the SHA intersection improvement on Rte. 198 (Spencerville Road) at Good 

Hope Road (Contract No. MO28851756).  SHA had started construction of the intersection 

project without Planning Board review of a mandatory referral using SPA criteria and 

requirements.  The project was discussed by the Planning Board at a round-table session at its 

November 5, 2009 meeting (see staff report of round-table item, Attachment 2).  As a result of 

the round-table discussion, the Board recommended that SHA identify and permanently remove 

0.113 acre of existing impervious surfaces in the Upper Paint Branch SPA to create no net 

increase in impervious surfaces for the intersection project (Attachment 3). 

 

 Subsequent to the Planning Board round-table discussion, staffs of both the Planning 

Department and the Department of Parks have worked with SHA staff to help identify possible 

sites in the SPA where impervious surfaces could be permanently removed.  Department of 

Parks staff identified the  property at 2831 Spencerville Road as one location where unwanted 

impervious surfaces could be permanently removed.  Department of Parks staff has determined 

that it does not require impervious surface credits from this site for a park project and the 

permanent removal of impervious surfaces on this site does not conflict with a park project (see 

Attachment 4).  These determinations are consistent with Department of Parks’ round-table 

discussion with the Planning Board of November 5, 2009 on the removal of impervious surfaces 

by another agency on parkland.   

 

 Although the round-table discussion between the Department of Parks and the Planning 

Board focused on the use of impervious surface removal credits by another County agency, staff 

believes the direction given by the Planning Board at the round-table session would also apply to 

a state agency that may need impervious surface removal credits.  It is Planning Department 

staff’s understanding that, in exchange for getting credit for removal of impervious surfaces, 

SHA has agreed to pay the Department of Parks for the cost of the impervious surfaces removal 

and the restoration of the area into pervious land. 

 

 Based on estimates from aerial photography and the use of GIS, it is estimated that the 

impervious surfaces that is proposed to be removed is roughly 6,750 square feet.  This exceeds 

the 4,922 square feet of impervious surface removal credits that SHA needs in order for its 

intersection improvement project at Spencerville Road at Good Hope Road to have no net 

increase of impervious surfaces in the SPA.   

 



 

 The amount of impervious surface proposed for removal  exceeds the amount that SHA 

needs.  Staff is not recommending any credit be granted for  any future project.  For other 

impervious surfaces removal projects that generate credits for another project, Planning staff 

have required a survey to precisely identify the amount of existing impervious surfaces that are 

removed or remain.  In this way, there is clear documentation of the impervious surfaces that can 

be removed and be used for credits against another project.   

 

 In this case, in order to avoid the cost and time of surveying and because the impervious 

surfaces to be removed is larger, by roughly 33 percent, than the amount SHA needs, Planning 

staff is allowing the documentation of impervious surface removal to be accomplished by 

estimates based on aerial photography and  GIS rather than through a more expensive 

professional survey.   

 

Environmental Buffers 

 

There are no streams, wetlands, 100-year floodplains, or environmental buffers on or 

adjacent to the site. 

 

 Forest Conservation Law 

 

 The subject property on which the house lies on is 20,061 square feet in size.  If the  

limits of disturbance (LOD) for the proposed removal of the portions of the driveway lying 

within the Spencerville Road right-of-way and adjoining Parcel N818 (also owned by the 

Department of Parks) are included, the total area of the property and offsite  LOD is 23,523 

square feet.   According to  Section 22A-4 of the County Forest Conservation Law, the project is 

not subject to the Forest Conservation Law for the property is subject to a sediment control 

permit on a tract of land less than 40,000 square feet..  

    

County DPS SPA Review Elements 

 

DPS identified Parks staff’s letter of March 23, 2011 as the water quality plan for this 

project.  DPS has approved the letter (Attachment 1).   

 

Site Performance Goals 

   

 In a typical SPA review process, a pre-application meeting is held between the applicant, 

DPS, DEP, and M-NCPPC.  At the meeting, DPS identifies the specific performance goals that 

apply to the proposed project.  In this case, since the project is removing impervious surfaces and 

does not involve new development, DPS determined that no pre-application meeting was needed 

and, therefore, no site performance goals were set for this project.  

        

 Stormwater Management Concept 

 

 There is no stormwater management concept for this project since existing impervious 

surfaces are removed and no new development or structures are proposed.   

 Sediment and Erosion Control 

 DPS has approved a Small Land Disturbance Application (SLDA) permit.  The installation 

of silt fencing will be determined by the DPS inspector in the field.    



 

 Monitoring of Best Management Practices 

 Since this project does not propose any new development or structures, no monitoring is 

required. 

CONCLUSION 

 

Staff recommends approval with conditions of the SPA Water Quality Plan. 
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